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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

CLIFTON BUTLER and FANNIE N ORMAN, Individually and on behalf of all persons similarly situated,





Plaintiffs,


-vs-

BENEFICIAL HOMEOWNER SERVICE CORPORATION, a Delaware Corporation, 





Defendant. 


CLASS ACTION                                     


  COMPLAINT

    Civ. No. 01-CV-6450 CJS(F)


Plaintiffs Clifton Butler and Fannie Norman, individually and on behalf of all of all persons similarly situated, by their attorneys Chamberlain D'Amanda Oppenheimer & Greenfield and Jean Constantine-Davis and Nina Simon, of AARP Foundation Litigation, respectfully show to this Court as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This is a consumer Class action against a finance company Beneficial Homeowner Service Corporation ("Beneficial"), which systematically and continuously targets low-income minority and/or older homeowners, unlawfully inducing those homeowners to enter into illegal and exorbitantly priced mortgage loan transactions.

2. Plaintiffs' claims are based on the Home Ownership Equity Protection Act (15 U.S.C. §1639)(“HOEPA”) and regulations promulgated thereunder; the Truth in Lending Act (15 U.S.C. §1601, et seq.) (“TILA”) and regulations promulgated thereunder; New York's General Business Law, Section 349 (“GBL (349”); and the New York Banking Department’s regulations prohibiting predatory lending, Title 3, New York Codes, Rules and Regulations, Part 41 (“3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41”).  

3. The Complaint alleges that defendant entices low-income homeowners, through misrepresentation, unfair and deceptive practices and other unconscionable conduct, to enter into mortgage loan transactions, which provide little or no benefit to the borrowers, skim off the equity in the borrowers' homes, are made without regard to the borrowers' abilities to make monthly payments, contrary to applicable law, and place Class Members in jeopardy of losing their homes, which are the collateral for the mortgage loans.

4. Defendants do not provide borrowers with the requisite federal and state disclosures prior to their execution of the mortgage loan documents.  When borrowers are unable to make their monthly mortgage payments, Beneficial either "flips" the borrowers' loans -- refinancing the mortgages and adding on still more illegal fees -- or forecloses on the borrowers' properties.

5. Defendants are reaping unconscionable financial benefits from their unlawful scheme.  Beneficial obtains padded points and fees at the closings.  Then Beneficial reaps exorbitant interest payments on a regular monthly basis.  

6. Since Beneficial's practice is to make loans based almost entirely on the value of the residence rather than the borrower's ability to repay the loan, borrowers often are unable to make their monthly payments, permitting Beneficial to foreclose on the loans. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. Jurisdiction of this Court exists for HOEPA and TILA claims pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1640(e) and 28 U.S.C. (1331; and for Plaintiffs' state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1367.

8. Venue lies in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b). 

PARTIES

9. Plaintiff Fannie Norman is a natural person, a citizen of the United States and resident of Rochester, New York.  Ms. Norman has owned and resided with co-owner Clifton Butler at 270 Clairmont Street, Rochester, New York, 14621 (“270 Clairmont Street”) for 24 years.  Ms. Norman is 56 years of age is employed as a receptionist.

10. Plaintiff Clifton Butler is a natural person, a citizen of the United States and resident of Rochester, New York.  Mr. Butler has owned and resided with co-owner Fannie Norman at 270 Clairmont Street, Rochester, New York, 14621 for 24 years.  Mr. Butler is 71 years sold and is a retired employee of Eastman Kodak Company.

11. Defendant Beneficial Homeowner Service Corporation (“Beneficial”) is a consumer finance company incorporated under the laws of Delaware.  Beneficial Home Owner Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of Beneficial Corporation, a Delaware corporation, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Household International, Inc., a Delaware corporation   The principal place of business of all three corporations is 2700 Sanders Road, Prospect Heights, Illinois.  

12. Beneficial operates an office at 9 North Clinton Avenue, Rochester, New York and is, upon information and belief, licensed by the New York State Banking Department to operate as a mortgage banker at 9 North Clinton Avenue, Rochester, New York. 

13. Upon information and belief, Beneficial is engaged in originating, acquiring, selling and servicing home equity loans.  Beneficial is also the mortgage lender that entered into the mortgage loan transactions that are the subject of this action.  

14. At all relevant times, Beneficial, in the ordinary course of its business regularly extends, or offers to extend, consumer credit payable by written agreement in more than four installments or for which a finance charge is or may be required and originates on which a security interest in the borrowers' homes are taken.  Accordingly, Beneficial is a "creditor" as defined by TILA and HOEPA.

15. At all relevant times, Beneficial has engaged in consumer credit transactions, as described at TILA, 15 U.S.C. §1602(aa)(1), in which the mortgage is secured by the consumer's principal dwelling and either: (a) the annual percentage rate at the consummation of the transaction exceeds by more than ten percentage (10%) percentage points the rate on Treasury securities having comparable periods of maturity on the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding the month in which the application for the loan is received; or (b) the total "points and fees" payable by the consumer at or before closing exceed 8 percent (8%) of the "total loan amount" (collectively "High Cost Mortgage").  

16. At all relevant times, Beneficial has engaged in consumer credit transactions involving High Cost Home Loans, as defined in 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 in which the mortgage is secured by the consumer's principal dwelling and either: (a) the total "points and fees" payable by the consumer at or before closing exceed 5 percent (5%) of the "total loan amount"; (b) the loan involves a first mortgage on the borrower’s principal residence and exceeds by more than eight percentage points (8%) the rate on Treasury securities having comparable periods of maturity on the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding the month in which the application for the loan is received; or (c) the loan involves a junior mortgage on the borrower’s principal residence and exceeds by more than nine percentage points (9%) the rate on Treasury securities having comparable periods of maturity on the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding the month in which the application for the loan is received (hereafter "High Cost Home Loan").  

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

17. Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a statewide Class action, pursuant to Rules 23(a) and 23(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of the following Class of individuals (the "Class" or "Class Members"):  All residents of the State of New York who entered into mortgage loan transactions after September 17, 1998 (the "Relevant Period"), with Beneficial, or with another lender where the loan was subsequently purchased by Beneficial, where the terms of the loan were illegal under federal and/or state law, and/or pre-closing or closing disclosures were not adequate under federal and/or state law, and/or Beneficial engaged in unfair or deceptive or unconscionable  practices to induce the individuals to enter into the mortgage loan transactions.

18. The Class consists of three Sub-Classes as follows: (a) the HOEPA Sub-Class, (b) the TILA Sub-Class, and (c) the State Law sub-Class.

19. The HOEPA Sub-Class consists of all New York residents who entered into mortgage loan transactions after September 17, 1998 where the mortgagee retained a security interest in the premises, the loan was for the individual's primary residence, which was a 1-4 family dwelling, the loan satisfied either of the trigger requirements set forth at 15 U.S.C. §1602(aa)(1)(A) or (B), and one or more of the following unlawful acts was perpetrated: (a) Beneficial failed to provide certain pre-closing disclosures required under 15 U.S.C. §1639(a)(2), as  described herein; and (b) Beneficial engaged in a pattern or practice of extending credit to individuals based on the individuals' collateral without regard to the individuals’ repayment ability, including the individuals' current and expected income, current obligations, and employment.  

20. The TILA Sub-Class consists of all New York residents who entered into mortgage loan transactions after September 17, 1998 where the mortgagee retained a security interest in the premises, the loan was for the individual's primary residence, which was a 1-4 family dwelling, and one or more of the following unlawful acts was perpetrated:  (1) Beneficial failed to provide certain disclosures required under 15 U.S.C. §1638, as described herein;  (b) Beneficial failed to provide certain required at-closing notices of right to rescind, as required under 15  U.S.C. §1635(a), as described herein.

21. The State Law Sub-Class includes all residents of New York State who entered into mortgage loan transactions after September 17, 1995 wherein Beneficial engaged in unfair and deceptive trade practices in violation of GBL (349.

22. The Members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all Members is impracticable.  Although Plaintiffs do not know the exact number of Class Members, Plaintiffs believe that Class Members executed hundreds of loans during the Relevant Period, and the Class will consist of hundreds of individuals.  The Class Members will be readily identifiable from Beneficial's mortgage loan files.

23. Plaintiffs' claims are typical of the claims of Class Members.  Plaintiffs' losses were caused by the same illegal conduct that gives rise to the claims of all other Class Members, thus ensuring the existence of common issues of law and fact among Plaintiffs and Class Members.

24. Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class.  Plaintiffs have no conflict of interest with other Class Members.  Plaintiffs have retained counsel experienced in complex Class action litigation who is competent to assert the interests of the Class.

25. The prosecution of separate actions by or against individual Members of the Class would create a risk of (a) inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual Members of the Class which would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the Defendants, or (b) adjudications with respect to individual Members of the Class would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of the other Members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests.

26. The Defendants have acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief with respect to the Class as a whole.

27. Common questions of law and fact predominate over questions, which may affect only individual Class Members, because the Defendants have acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the entire Class.

28. Among the questions of law and fact common to Class Members are:  

(a) Whether Beneficial engaged in a pattern or practice of refinancing mortgages based on the equity in borrowers' homes, rather than on their ability to repay the loans, and thereby violated HOEPA;  

(b) Whether Beneficial consistently and continuously failed to provide, or provided in an inappropriate manner, certain disclosures that are mandated under HOEPA and TILA, respectively, to be disclosed three days prior to closing and others to be disclosed prior to consummation of the loan. 

(c) Whether Beneficial consistently and continuously failed to provide, or provided in an inappropriate manner, notice of right to rescind, mandated under TILA and thereby violated TILA;  

(d) Whether Beneficial's consistent and continuous practices constituted deceptive practices in violation of New York's General Business Law §349, in that Beneficial systematically and continuously failed to provide required disclosures under HOEPA and TILA; failed to provide required notices of right to rescind under TILA; evaluated and approved loan applications on the basis of the value of borrowers' collateral and not on the basis of the borrowers' ability to pay in violation of federal law; and engaged in high pressure sales tactics to induce borrowers to enter into loan transactions;  

(e) Whether Plaintiffs and Class Members have sustained damages by reason of Beneficial’s wrongful conduct and, if so, the proper measure of such damages; and  

(f) Whether Plaintiffs and Class Members are entitled to injunctive and/or declaratory relief.

29. A Class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.  A Class action will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently and without the unnecessary duplication of evidence, effort and expense that numerous individual actions would engender.  Class treatment also will permit the adjudication of relatively small claims by certain Class Members who could not afford to litigate individually such claims against sizeable corporate defendants.  Moreover, many Class Members are low-income, minority and/or elderly victims of Defendants' practices who may be unaware of their rights under federal and state consumer protection laws.

30. Plaintiffs know of no difficulty to be encountered in the management of the action that would preclude maintenance as a Class action. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
The November 2000 Loan – LOAN #1

31. The Plaintiffs purchased the 270 Clairmont Street in 1978 as joint tenants with a right of survivorship and have lived there together ever since.

32. On or about November 22, 2000, Ms. Norman went to the Beneficial offices to apply for a loan from Beneficial for approximately $17,000.  She was later notified that she was eligible for the loan.

33. Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler went to the Beneficial office on November 24, 2000 to execute the necessary documents.

34. Ms. Norman signed a document entitled “Loan Repayment and Security Agreement” dated November 24, 2000, which identified the loan date as 11/24/2000 and assigned the transaction Account #641774-536257.

35. Beneficial required, as a condition of granting this loan, that Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler grant a second mortgage on 270 Clairmont Street to Beneficial.  

36. The mortgage was drawn by Beneficial and signed by Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler on November 24, 2000. 

37. In conjunction with the closing of this loan, Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler were instructed to sign an acknowledgement of receipt of a document entitled "Notice of Right to Cancel" dated November 24, 2000.  

38. This Notice was addressed to Ms. Norman and purported to advise her of her right to cancel the transaction within three business days of the loan date, which was identified as November 24, 2000.

39. Neither Ms. Norman nor Mr. Butler received any document concerning Mr. Butler’s right to cancel the transaction in conjunction with this loan.

40. Ms. Norman later received a document entitled TRUTH-IN-LENDING DISCLOSURES dated November 29, 2000, which referred to Account #641774-536536 and included the following disclosures:

Amount Financed



$16,599.93

Finance Charge



$26,728l27

Total of Payments



$43,328.40

Monthly Payment 



$361.07

Annual Percentage Rate


23.573%

41. In conjunction with this loan, Ms. Norman was charged the following amounts:

Single Premium Life Insurance


$895.16

Single Premium Disability Insurance

$704.09

“Points”





$873.68

Official Fees




$128.25

42. Neither Ms. Norman nor Mr. Butler received a Notice of Right to Cancel after her receipt of the TRUTH-IN-LENDING DISCLOSURE document dated November 29, 2000.

43. When the Plaintiffs expressed concern at the interest rate, the Beneficial employee involved told them to return in a few months to negotiate a lower interest rate.

44. The yield on a 10-month Treasury bond on October16, 2000 was 5.73%.  October 15, 2000 was a Sunday and there is no available price information for Treasury bonds for that date.

45.  This loan was a High Cost Home Loan under 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 and involved a High Cost Mortgage under HOEPA.

46. Beneficial filed the mortgage with the Monroe County Clerk on December 7, 200 and it was recorded at Liber 15154 of Deeds, at page 0364.

47. Beneficial did not provide the disclosures or services necessary to comply with HOEPA or 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 prior to closing on this loan.  

48. Plaintiffs were unable to afford the payments on this loan.

49. Plaintiffs delivered a timely notice of rescission to Beneficial regarding all loans on September 12, 2001.

The February 2000 Refinancing – LOAN #2
50. On or about February 22, 2001 the Plaintiffs returned to Beneficial’s office to inquire about refinancing the November 2000 loan at a lower interest rate and lower payments.

51. In the course of these discussions, a Beneficial employee persuaded the Plaintiffs not to refinance the November 2000 loan but, rather, to refinance the first mortgage loan on their home then held by Equicredit Corporation.

52. The Beneficial employee who interviewed them told Plaintiffs that they could refinance the Equicredit loan at a lower interest rate and at lower payments, and still obtain $5,000 to $8,000 to pay off some pre-existing obligations.

53. The first mortgage loan held by Equicredit carried an interest rate of 10.58%.

54. On the next day, February 23, 2001, Beneficial insisted that Plaintiffs execute documents the close on the loan, even though Beneficial did not yet know the payoff figure for the Equicredit loan. 

55. Plaintiffs were told that it would take some days to get the pay-off figures from Equicredit and that they could return in several days to get their money.

56. Ms. Norman signed a document entitled “Loan Repayment and Security Agreement” dated February 23, 2001.

57. Beneficial required, as a condition of granting this loan, that Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler grant another mortgage on 270 Clairmont Street to Beneficial.  

58. The mortgage was drawn by Beneficial and signed by Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler on February 23, 2001.

59. Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler were instructed to sign an acknowledgement of receipt of a document entitled “Notice of Right to Cancel.”  This Notice was addressed to Ms. Norman and purported to advise her of her right to cancel the transaction within three business days of the loan transaction, which was identified as February 23, 2001. 

60. Beneficial produced a document entitled TRUTH-IN-LENDING DISCLOSURES dated February 23, 2001, which referenced Account # 641774-539443 and included the following disclosures by Beneficial:

Amount Financed



$66,338.50

Finance Charge



$179,674.70

Total of Payments



$246,013.20

Monthly Payment 



$683.37

Date of Loan 



02/23/01

First Payment Due



03/23/01

Annual Percentage Rate


12.019%

61. Neither Ms. Norman nor Mr. Butler received any document concerning Mr. Butler’s right to cancel the transaction in conjunction with this loan.

62. On February 28, 2001, Plaintiffs returned to the Beneficial office and were instructed to endorse a document entitled “Borrower’s Notice of Confirmation”, which stated that “three or more business days have elapsed from the date on which I received the duplicate of this notice of Right to Cancel and executed the4 loan contract to which this Notice refers and that I have not cancelled this contract.”

63. Beneficial then produced a document entitled TRUTH-IN-LENDING DISCLOSURES, dated February 28, 2001, which referenced a new account number, Account # 641774-539695 and included the following disclosures by Beneficial:

Amount Financed



$66,338.50

Finance Charge



$179,674.70

Total of Payments



$246,013.20

Monthly Payment 



$683.37

Date of Loan



02/28/01

Date of  First Payment


03/28/01

Annual Percentage Rate


12.019%

64. In conjunction with this loan, Ms. Norman was charged the following amounts:

Single Premium Life Insurance


$4,006.55

Single Premium Disability Insurance

$1,332.57

“Points”





$5,185.49

Title Examination or Insurance


$   676.00

Real Estate Appraisal



$   290.00

Official Fees




$   530.25

65. It was not until then that Plaintiffs learned that they would receive proceeds from this loan of only $803.13, not the $5,000 to $8,000 that Beneficial had told the Plaintiffs they would receive; that the APR on the new mortgage was 12.019%, up from an APR of 10.58% on the Equicredit loan; that the monthly payment on the new mortgage loan from Beneficial was some $683, up from $488 under the Equicredit loan, a 40% increase; and that they were paying, indeed financing, some $5,185.49 in “points”.

66. Beneficial filed the mortgage on 270 Clairmont Street in the Monroe County Clerk ‘ Office at 3:48 that afternoon and it was recorded at Liber 15244 of Deeds, page 0104.

67. Beneficial never provided Plaintiffs with a notice of their right to cancel the transaction after it changed the loan date and payment dates of the loan.

68. Plaintiffs demanded that day that the “points” be refunded and they be provided with the cash proceeds promised them, Plaintiffs were told that was impossible and that their time to rescind the loan transaction had expired.

69. Upon information and belief, the total points and fees payable by the Plaintiffs at the closing of this loan exceeded eight percent (8%) of the of the “total loan amount.”

70. This loan was a High Cost Home Loan under 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 and involved a High Cost Mortgage under HOEPA.

71. Beneficial did not provide the disclosures or services necessary to comply with HOEPA or 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 prior to closing on this loan.

72. Only $3,343.87of the principal of the November 2000 loan was paid off from the proceeds of this loan.

73. Plaintiffs were unable to afford the payments on this loan and stopped making payments in April 28, 2001, when they made a payment of interest only.

74. Plaintiffs delivered a timely notice of rescission to Beneficial regarding all loans on September 12, 2001.

The March 2001 Refinancing – LOAN #3

75. When the Plaintiffs continued to Complaint about the lack of cash they received on the loan of February 23, Beneficial offered to combine the two outstanding loans so that the Plaintiffs could obtain additional cash.

76. On or about March 6, 2001, the Plaintiffs executed new documents, which they thought would yield additional cash for them to pay off other financial obligations.

77. In conjunction with this loan, Ms. Norman signed a document entitled “Loan Repayment and Security Agreement” dated March 6, 2001.

78. Ms. Norman received a document entitled TRUTH-IN-LENDING DISCLOSURES dated March 6, 2001, which included the following disclosures by Beneficial:

Amount Financed



$13,000.93

Finance Charge



$31,581.47

Total of Payments



$44,582.40

Monthly Payment 



$247.68

Annual Percentage Rate


21.991%

79. In conjunction with this loan, the outstanding principal of the November 2000 loan was paid off and the new loan was consolidated under the mortgage given by the Plaintiffs on November 29, 2000.

80. The yield on the 15-year Treasury bond on February 15, 2001 was 5.62%.

81. Plaintiffs did not receive any additional cash as the entire proceeds were used to refinance the November loan for 15 years, resulting in an additional Finance Charge of $4, 853.  

82. The mortgage that had secured the November 2000 loan also stood as security for this new note.

83. In conjunction with the closing of this loan, Ms. Norman and Mr. Butler were instructed to sign an acknowledgement of receipt of a document entitled "Notice of Right to Cancel."  This Notice was addressed to Ms. Norman and purported to advise her of her right to cancel the transaction within three business days. 

84. Neither Ms. Norman nor Mr. Butler received any document concerning Mr. Butler’s right to cancel the transaction in conjunction with this loan.

85. This loan was a High Cost Home Loan under 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 and involved a High Cost Mortgage under HOEPA. 

86. Plaintiffs were unable to afford the payments on this loan and made their last payment on July 14, 2001.

87. Plaintiffs delivered a timely notice of rescission to Beneficial regarding all loans on September 12, 2001.

COUNT I—TILA
(Plaintiffs and TILA Sub-Class Members) 

88. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege all paragraphs above as if fully set forth herein.

89. Beneficial is a “creditor” within the meaning of TILA.
90. Plaintiffs’ transactions were an extension of consumer credit by a creditor subject to TILA.  The TILA Sub-Class Members’ transactions were also extensions of consumer credit by a creditor subject to TILA.
91. Since Plaintiffs’ and TILA Sub-Class Members’ mortgage loan transactions involved the creation of a security interest in the consumers’ residences other than for purposes of purchasing or constructing that residence, those mortgage loan transactions were also subject to the rescission provisions of TILA, 15 U.S.C. §1635.
92. TILA requires that a creditor deliver to each owner of a premises, prior to closing, accurate disclosures of the following material terms: (a) the “APR” or “annual percentage rate”; (b) the “finance charge(s)”; (c) the “amount financed”; (d) the schedule of payments”; and (e) the “total of payments”. See 15 U.S.C. §1638; Official Staff Commentary, Regulation Z  (226.23(b)-1.  
93. These disclosures must be clear and conspicuous and in a form which the borrower may keep. Regulation Z. (226.17.
94. Where such information is not accurately disclosed, a borrower is entitled to rescind a transaction for up to three years after consummation of the transaction.  See 15 U.S.C. §1635.
95. Where such information is not accurately disclosed, a borrower is entitled to actual and statutory damages.  See 15 U.S.C. §1640(a).
96. TILA also requires that a creditor deliver to each owner of a premises two written notices of said owner’s right to rescind, which are clear and conspicuous and in writing .  See 15 U.S.C. §1635(a); Regulation Z, §§226.23(b), Official Staff Commentary (226.23(b).  
97. Where such information is not accurately disclosed, a borrower is entitled to rescind a transaction for up to three years after consummation of the transaction.  See 15 U.S.C. §1635.
98. As part of Plaintiffs’ consumer credit transactions, Beneficial retained a security interest in 270 Clairmont Street, which is the Plaintiffs’ principal dwelling. 
Beneficial failed to provide Mr. Butler with any notice of his Right to Cancel any of the three mortgage loans described above, in violation of 15 U.S.C. (1635 and Regulation Z (226.23.

99. Beneficial failed to provide accurate TILA disclosures until after the loans were made.

Beneficial violated TILA by providing the borrowers with TILA disclosures for Loans #1 and #2 that set forth a Schedule of Payments which differed from the scheduled payment dates in the Repayment Agreement.

100. Beneficial violated TILA by providing the borrowers with TILA disclosures for Loans #1 and #2 which differed from the TILA disclosures retained in its files.

Beneficial further violated TILA by misdating the expiration of the Notices of right to cancel provided to Fannie Norman on Loans #1 and #2, thereby depriving her of proper notice of her right to cancel.

101. Beneficial violated TILA by failing to provide each of the Plaintiffs with two copies of Notice of their Right to Cancel as required by 15 U.S.C. 1635 and Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. 226.23 (b)(1). 

As a result of Beneficial’s failure to required disclosures and notices identified above, Beneficial violated TILA.
102. Beneficial’s violations of TILA give the borrowers an extended right of rescission pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1635 and Regulation Z §226.23.  
103. Plaintiffs exercised this right on September 12, 2001. 
104. The above violations of TILA and Regulation Z disclosure and notice requirements with respect to TILA Sub-Class Members give each such Class Member whose mortgage loan transaction was entered into on or after September 17, 1998, a continuing right to rescind that transaction. 
COUNT II—HOEPA 

(Plaintiffs and HOEPA Sub-Class Members)
105. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege all paragraphs above as if fully set forth herein.  
106. Beneficial is a “creditor” within the meaning of TILA.
107. Plaintiffs’ transactions were an extension of consumer credit by a creditor subject to TILA.  The TILA Sub-Class Members’ transactions were also extensions of consumer credit by a creditor subject to TILA.
108. Since Plaintiffs’ and TILA Sub-Class Members’ mortgage loan transactions involved the creation of a security interest in the consumers’ residences other than for purposes of purchasing or constructing that residence, those mortgage loan transactions were also subject to the rescission provisions of TILA, 15 U.S.C. §1635.
109. As part of Plaintiffs’ consumer credit transactions, Beneficial retained a security interest in 270 Clairmont Street, which is the Plaintiffs’ principal dwelling. 

110. HOEPA requires every creditor, extending credit on High Cost Mortgages to provide the following a disclosure containing the following statement, in “conspicuous” type, not less than three business days prior to closing:


You are not required to complete this agreement merely because you received these disclosures or have signed a loan application. If you obtain this loan, the lender will have a mortgage on your home.  You could lose your home and any money you have put into it, if you do not meet your obligations under the loan.

See 15 U.S.C. §1639(a)(1); Reg. Z §226.32(c),

111. For fixed-rate loans, the creditor must include in that disclosure the annual percentage rate and the amount of the regular monthly payment at least three business days prior to closing. See 15 U.S.C. §1639(a)(2)(A); Reg. Z §226.32(c).  

HOEPA also prohibits a creditor, extending credit on High Cost Mortgages from engaging in “a pattern or practice of extending credit to consumers based on the consumers’ collateral without regard to the consumers’ repayment ability, including the consumers’ current and expected income, current obligations and employment.” See 15 U.S.C. §1639(h); Reg. Z §226.32(e)(1).  

112. With regard to each of Plaintiffs’ loan transactions, Beneficial failed to provide the disclosures mandated by 15 U.S.C. (1639 and 12 C.F.R. 226.31,226.32.

Beneficial failed to provide the required disclosures not less than 3 business days prior to consummation of the transaction in violation of TILA, 15 U.S.C. (1639 (b) and Reg. Z (( 226.31 (b),226.32(c)

Beneficial failed to provide these disclosures clearly and conspicuously in writing, in a form the consumer may keep in violation of Reg. Z (226.31 (b).

Beneficial further violated 15 U.S.C. (1639 in that it made loans to Mr. Butler and Ms. Norman based on the value of their home and without regard to their ability to repay the loans.  
Upon information and belief, each of the three loans extended to Ms. Norman, secured by mortgages taken on Ms. Norman’s and Mr. Butler’s home, were a part of Beneficial’s pattern or practice of extending such mortgages to consumers based on the consumer’s collateral without regard to the consumer’s repayment ability in violation of 15. U.S.C. (1639 (h) and Reg. Z, (226.32 (e)(1).
Due to the above-described violations of HOEPA and Regulation Z, Plaintiffs and Class Members have a statutory right to rescind their mortgage loan transactions with Beneficial and are entitled to damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§1635, 1639 and 1640 and Regulation Z §226.23.
COUNT III – DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICES

(Plaintiffs and State Law Sub-Class Members)
113. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege all paragraphs above as if fully set forth herein.
114. Upon information and belief, Beneficial “conducts a business” and/or “furnishes a service” as those terms are defined in New York State General Business Law, (349 (“GBL  (349”).
115. Beneficial violated the GBL (349 with respect to Plaintiffs by engaging in consumer-oriented acts and practices which were deceptive or misleading in a material way, and which were unfair, deceptive, and contrary to public policy and generally recognized standards of business.
116. Beneficial failed to provide Plaintiffs with the appropriate and accurate pre-closing and closing disclosures and accurate notices of their rights to cancel, including but not limited to disclosures required by TILA and HOEPA.
117. Beneficial misrepresented to Plaintiffs that the points and fees payable from the proceeds of the mortgage were bona fide and reasonable and necessary for the extension of credit, or failed to inform Plaintiffs that they were not.
118. Beneficial required Plaintiffs to execute inaccurate documents in order to close their loans.
119. Beneficial required Plaintiffs to execute loan document without having first received required disclosures under TILA and HOEPA.
120. Beneficial failed to provide Plaintiffs with accurate HUD-1 forms as required by the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. (2603.
121. Beneficial attempted to abrogate such Class Members’ statutory rights by failing to provide the appropriate pre-closing disclosures.
122. Beneficial attempted to abrogate such Class Members’ statutory rights to rescind by failing to provide the appropriate disclosures regarding right to cancel.
123. Beneficial violated the provisions of 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41, which requires certain disclosures and prohibit certain practices in connection with high cost mortgage loans.
124. Upon information and belief, Beneficial made loans to the Plaintiffs without due regard to repayment ability in violation of 3 N.Y.C.R.R.  (41.3.
125. Beneficial failed to deliver, place in the mail, fax or electronically transmit the following notice in at least 12-point type to the Plaintiffs’ at the time of Ms. Norman’s loan applications: "You should consider financial counseling prior to executing loan documents. The enclosed list of counselors is provided by the New York State Banking Department", as required by 3 N.Y.C.R.R. (41.3. 
126. Beneficial failed to provide a list of counselors as required by 3 N.Y.C.R.R.  (41.3.
127. Beneficial failed give the disclosures required by Title 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 38 to the Plaintiffs in writing at the time of application at least three days prior to the closing whether or not funds are then disbursed, as required by 3 N.Y.C.R.R.  (41.4.
128. Beneficial failed to deliver, place in the mail, fax or electronically transmit to the Plaintiffs a statement in substantially the following form: "Although your aggregate monthly debt payment may decrease, the High Cost Home Loan may increase both (i) your aggregate number of monthly debt payments and (ii) the aggregate amount paid by you over the term of the High Cost Home Loan", as required by 3 N.Y.C.R.R.  (41.4.

129. Upon information and belief Beneficial failed to comply with the requirement of 3 N.Y.C.R.R.  (41.4(d) that the following statement in a minimum of 12-point type must appear directly above the borrower's signature line on the application: "The loan which may be offered to you is not necessarily the least expensive loan available to you and you are advised to shop around to determine comparative interest rates, points and other fees and charges." 
130. Beneficial failed to make the disclosures in compliance with HOEPA and its implementing regulations.
131.  Plaintiffs suffered serious injury and damages as the proximate result of Beneficial’s deceptive and unfair practices, including but not limited to:  paying padded loan fees and costs, and paying padded finance charges as a result of excessive interest rates.
132. Upon information and belief, Beneficial violates the GBL (349 by engaging in consumer-oriented acts and practices which are deceptive or misleading in a material way, and which are unfair, deceptive, and contrary to public policy and generally recognized standards of business, in connection with providing loans to State Law Sub-Class Members. 
133. Upon information and belief, each State Law Sub-Class Member suffered serious injury and damages as the proximate result of Beneficial’s above-described deceptive and unfair practices, including but not limited to:  paying padded loan fees and costs and paying padded finance charges as a result of excessive interest rates.
134. As a result of the above-described violations, Plaintiffs and State Law Sub-Class Members are entitled to the equitable and monetary relief set forth in New York General Business Law Sections §349(h). 
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all Class Members, request the following relief:
1.
An order certifying the proposed Class and/or sub-Classes under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and appointing the Plaintiffs and their counsel to represent the Class and/or sub-Classes;
2.
An order permanently enjoining Beneficial from engaging in the illegal, unfair and deceptive practices described above;

3. 
An order preliminarily and permanently enjoining Beneficial from commencing any foreclosure proceedings against the Plaintiffs and Class Members who have served a notice of recission with regard to the transaction which purportedly gave rise to the mortgage, lien or security interest sought to be foreclosed;

4. 
An order (i) entering declaratory relief of rescission for the Plaintiffs, (ii) voiding any lien and/or any security interest obtained by Beneficial against the property of the Plaintiffs,  (iii) providing actual, statutory and enhanced damages, attorneys’ fees and costs to the Plaintiffs and Class Members, under HOEPA, TILA and GBL (349; (iv) establishing a sufficient time period for Plaintiffs to comply with the requirements of TILA regarding return of loan principal to Beneficial.;
5. An order (i) declaring all HOEPA and TILA Sub-Class Members potentially entitled to rescind their mortgage loan transactions, (ii) requiring Beneficial to notify all such Class Members of their potential statutory right to rescind each of their respective mortgage loan transactions, (iii) providing whatever other relief this Court deems thereafter to be appropriate to effect the rescission of such Class Members’ mortgage loan transactions, (iv) with respect to all such Class Members who transmit notices of rescission and whose loans are not rescinded within the 20 day statutory period, providing for actual, statutory and enhanced damages, pursuant to TILA and HOEPA for all such Class Members, and (v) establishing a sufficient time period for Plaintiffs to comply with the requirements of TILA regarding return of loan principal to Beneficial.

6. An order requiring Beneficial to determine with regard to each consumer credit transaction secured by a mortgage, lien or security interest in the borrower’s primary residence, whether said transaction comes within the provisions of 15 U.S.C. (1639 or 3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 41 and to comply with the requirements imposed thereby were applicable;

7. An Order directing payments of Plaintiffs’ costs, disbursements and reasonable attorneys’ fees, as permitted by statute; and 

8. Such other relief at law or equity as this Court may deem just and proper.

9.
Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury. 
Dated: 
September 14, 2001








K. Wade Eaton

____________________________________

         

K. Wade Eaton

Chamberlain D'Amanda Oppenheimer &              
Greenfield

1600 Crossroads Building

Two State Street

Rochester, New York 14614

Jean Constantine-Davis

Nina Simon

AARP Foundation Litigation

601 E Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20049

Attorneys for Plaintiffs  







PAGE  
Complaint - Page 1 of 27


